BIRMINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 07 SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 10:00 HOURS
IN COMMITTEE ROOMS 3 & 4, COUNCIL HOUSE, VICTORIA
SQUARE, BIRMINGHAM, B1 1BB

<u>A G E N D A</u>

1 NOTICE OF RECORDING/WEBCAST

The Chair to advise/meeting to note that this meeting will be webcast for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's meeting You Tube site (www.youtube.com/channel/UCT2kT7ZRPFCXq6_5dnVnYlw) and that members of the press/public may record and take photographs except where there are confidential or exempt items.

2 **APOLOGIES**

To receive any apologies.

3 **DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS**

Members are reminded that they must declare all relevant pecuniary and non pecuniary interests arising from any business to be discussed at this meeting. If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared a Member must not speak or take part in that agenda item. Any declarations will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

4 ACTION NOTES

<u>3 - 12</u>

To agree the action notes of the formal meeting held on the 20th July 2022.

5 **SEND**

Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families, Bob Harrison, Project Manager, and Johanna Condon, Interim Head of SENAR Operations (online) in attendance.

29 - 52 CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES

Cllr Karen McCarthy, Cabinet Member, Children, Young People and Families in attendance to provide a summary of her priorities for 2022-23 and identify opportunities for O&S to add value.

7 <u>WORK PROGRAMME</u> 53 - 64

To agree the work programme.

8 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting is scheduled for 19th October 2022 at 10am

9 REQUEST(S) FOR CALL IN/COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION/PETITIONS RECEIVED (IF ANY)

To consider any request for call in/councillor call for action/petitions (if received).

10 OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items of business by reason of special circumstances (to be specified) that in the opinion of the Chair are matters of urgency.

11 <u>AUTHORITY TO CHAIR AND OFFICERS</u>

Chair to move:-

'In an urgent situation between meetings, the Chair jointly with the relevant Chief Officer has authority to act on behalf of the Committee'.

BIRMINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE O&S COMMITTEE – PUBLIC MEETING

1000 hours on Wednesday, 20 July 2022, Charles Dickens Theatre, BMI, 9
Margaret Street and re-located to Committee Room C, Council House
Extension, Margaret Street

Action Notes

Present:

Councillor Kerry Jenkins (Chair)

Councillors: Shabina Bano, Jilly Bermingham, Debbie Clancy, Des Hughes, Morriam Jan, Shehla Moledina, and Simon Morrall

Other Voting Representatives: Sarah Smith, Church of England Diocese

Also Present:

Cllr Karen McCarthy, Cabinet Member, Children, Young People and Families

Sabiha Aziz, Chair, Parent Carer Forum

Fiona Bottrill, Senior Overview and Scrutiny Manager

John Elsegood, Service Communication Lead, Home to School Transport / Children and Young People Travel Service

Mike Fagan, AD, Home to School Transport / Children and Young People Travel Service

Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families

Dionne McAndrew, AD, Vulnerable Young People, Children's Trust

Victor Roman, SEND Improvement Programme Manager (on-line)

Satinder Sahota, Interim City Solicitor & Monitoring Officer (on-line)

Janine Saleh, Head of Service, Youth Offending Service

Amanda Simcox, Scrutiny Officer

1. NOTICE OF RECORDING/WEBCAST

The Chair advised that this meeting will be webcast for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's meeting You Tube site

(www.youtube.com/channel/UCT2kT7ZRPFCXq6_5dnVnYlw) and that members of the press/public may record and take photographs except where there are confidential or exempt items.

2. APOLOGIES

Apologies for non-attendance were received on behalf of Justine Lomas, Roman Catholic Diocese, and Rabia Shami, Parent Governor. Apologies for lateness were received from Cllr Morriam Jan and Cllr Shabina Bano.

3. APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE, CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR

RESOLVED:

- Noted the resolution of the City Council appointing the Committee and Chair to serve on the Committee for the period ending with the Annual Meeting of the City Council in 2023, and Cllr Morriam Jan replaced Cllr Penny Wagg as per the resolution of the City Council on 12th July 2022.
- Elected Cllr Des Hughes as the Deputy Chair, for the purposes of substitution for the Chair if absent, for the period ending with the Annual Meeting of the City Council in 2023.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

Councillor Des Hughes declared that he had been employed by Special Educational Needs and Disability Information, Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS) until April 2022.

Sarah Smith declared that she is the Chair of All Saints Multi Academy Trust (MAT), and BTMAT, and is a member of Fioretti Trust, which all have Birmingham schools.

5. TERMS OF REFERENCE

RESOLVED:

Noted the Terms of Reference.

6. ACTION NOTES

(See document No. 1)

RESOLVED:

The action notes of the formal meeting held on the 30th March 2022 were agreed.

7. SEND

(See documents No. 2 and No. 3)

Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families, Victor Roman, SEND Improvement Programme Manager (on-line), and Sabiha Aziz, Chair, Parent Carer Forum were in attendance.

Sue Harrison introduced the item and set out the vision, principles and context. This included the need to agree the definition of inclusion for Birmingham, and they had the six months DfE progress stocktake for the Accelerated Progress Plan (APP) in June 2022.

Victor Roman gave the presentation, and the Chair apologised for the technical difficulties at the BMI, which resulted in the committee meeting being suspended at 10.30am and re-located to Committee Room C, Council House Extension, Margaret Street.

The meeting recommenced at 10.40am.

Sue Harrison summed up the presentation and highlighted that the Accelerated Progress Plan (APP) had been delayed due to it having to be approved by the DfE and had now been published (it is included in the papers for the meeting). Their performance will be challenged by the SEND Improvement Board, and they are expecting to give regular updates to the Committee on how they have met the APP progress milestones.

During the discussion and in response to queries raised by Members, the main points included:

- There is a measure for the % of pupils with EHCP educated in a mainstream environment. However, this is not a target they need to meet as they recognise there is a legal duty for pupils to be educated in appropriate provision. Although, it was noted that in law there is a presumption of mainstream, with the national average being around 50%, and the strategic vision in the green paper is that most children with an EHCP will be educated in mainstream where appropriate.
- It is about increasing capacity and specialisation so mainstream schools can cater for children and young people with SEND. They have had discussions with Head Teachers about how they can support Special Educational Needs Coordinators (SENCOs), and they are near completion of the SEND sufficiency strategy, which will come to the Committee when completed.
- The data regarding the number of EHCPs annual reviews completed was discussed. The methodology for collecting this data, and the full data, will be forwarded to the Committee.
- ID No: WTW6 they have not set a target for the number of appeals lodged at SENDIST because they want to reduce the number of tribunals to zero and

appreciate this is a very difficult target to achieve. They will do this by making the right decision in the first place, and having appropriate mediation with the parents, and not for the relationships with parents to have broken down. The figures on page 26 (page 56 of the agenda pack) does not have a target but is showing the actual numbers which have lodged an appeal, and this is the official data from the Appeals Team.

- Rating the quality of EHCPs: each of the agencies have their own quality
 assurance regarding information they provide, and multi-agency audits will
 take place in the Autumn, where they will be using a tool co constructed with
 parents to do this, and will be able to give a comparator with other local
 authorities who use this tool.
- They had to work to the timelines provided by the DfE for the development of the APP.
- Reassurance was given regarding SEND improvement and what will be different this time. Previously they had not had the governance in place, or a DfE Commissioner who has powers to intervene. The highest level of accountability and scrutiny is now in place. The other aspect is openness about partners requirements to support children and young people with SEND and holding them to account through the Birmingham Children's Partnership and the SEND Improvement Board.
- They have worked really closely with PCF, and they will not over promise and under deliver, rather they will set reasonable targets, and earn back trust.
 Also, they will be putting in a robust quality assurance framework, which includes surveys.
- As of May 2022, there were 293 children and young people awaiting a special school placement.
- The DfE was pleased with the six months stocktake and the evidence presented. They are happy with the plan and things not in the plan, like SEND sufficiency will be dealt with.
- They are focusing on early help and intervention and this includes looking at their contract with the Children's Trust and trialling some locality work that will go through the SEND Improvement Board.
- Schools need to inform officers in a timely manner when they put children on a
 part time timetable, and a new post has been created so there can be
 oversight and they will be mapping children school by school.
- The PCF are looking at culture issues and they requested help in raising awareness of the PCF. They are independent and create a bridge, but there are only seven of them, and they can only represent the views of people who are aware of the PCF. Cllr Shabina Bano will discuss raising awareness with Sabiha Aziz outside the meeting.

The Chair thanked officers for their commitment to drive improvement, and the Committee agreed for a further update on SEND at the 7th September 2022 committee meeting, which will pick up the contributions and points made today.

RESOLVED:

- The update was noted, and the SEND update programmed for the 7th
 September 2022 committee meeting will include the contributions and points raised today.
- The SEND Sufficiency Report to be presented to the Committee when completed.
- The methodology and full data on EHCP Annual Reviews to be forwarded to the Committee.
- Cllr Shabina Bano will discuss awareness raising with Sabiha Aziz outside the meeting.

8. HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT

(See document No. 4)

Mike Fagan, AD, Home to School Transport / Children and Young People Travel Service, John Elsegood, Head of Communications, Home to School Transport / Children and Young People Travel Service, Satinder Sahota, Interim City Solicitor & Monitoring Officer (on-line), and Sabiha Aziz, Chair, Parent Carer Forum were in attendance.

Mike Fagan gave the presentation and highlighted:

- They are developing KPIs for the service.
- The planning for September 2022 is well advanced.
- Assurance was given that children are now at the heart of the service.
- Travel mentors are unique to Birmingham.
- Preparation for September 2022: getting information from schools is one of the weak points. However, plans are in place to improve this.
- Communication is a critical risk and the post of a critical incident officer will be created.
- The HATS routes contract was awarded on a one year basis, and this will now be a four year contract, with a quarter of the routes being procured per year.

During the discussion and in response to queries raised by Members, the main points included:

• The core issues the PCF are hearing from families are communication and transparency. For example, a lot of parents are awaiting information about arrangements for September 2022, and contractors are not answering their phones. Also, there is poor transparency around sanctions to contractors, with this being a good news story, so families know that there are sanctions placed when contractors do not fulfil their obligations. Also, the non eligibility of

- children under statutory school ages i.e. children under 5 years old and not all parents being informed they needed to re-apply on-line when children transition.
- Four year olds in school: The Council's policy written in 2019¹ says that free travel could be provided for children from five years old upward, and the legislation says that transport should be provided for children of compulsory school age. The Council's policy had been called in by the Committee (2 May 2019) and referred back to Cabinet. Mike Fagan's interpretation is that the spirit of the legislation demands that we provide transport to children who are attending school. Until officers can re-write the policy, the short term compromise is that where they have identified four year olds about to attend school who require transport, and transport can be provided through an existing route, then the Council will put them on the route, at no cost to the parent.
- The policy for 16 years old 18 years old is in development.
- Communication to parents is key and this is recognised by officers, with John Elsegood, Service Communication Lead, being supported by two other members of staff. Every parent should be told within the next two weeks of the travel arrangements, and they will be building on the networks to get the message out, including the PCF and Members.
- KPIs and performance will be discussed when the data is of a good enough quality.
- DBS checks: officers are currently badging all drivers and guides themselves, above the national standard (as the national requirement is that either of them should be DBS). They are currently completing an options appraisal that has three possibilities: we continue to do it ourselves, the HR department do it, or we outsource. However, Mike Fagan promised and committed that there will not be an un-DBS driver or guide travelling with a child.
- Officers do not have the number of how many decisions are appealed.
- On receipt of the EHCP the application for transport has reduced to less than two weeks.
- They are trying to have a set of minimum standards for guides and drivers, for example, they must be able to communicate clearly in English, ideally with them being able to communicate in the first language of the child. All guides are trained specifically to the child, and they are also looking at mental health, and recognising what it is like for the child, so appropriate support can be provided.
- The Council's transport policy adheres to legislation but does not adhere to the spirit of the legislation. Officers will lead a comprehensive review before

¹ https://www.birmingham.gov.uk/downloads/download/840/travel assist policy documents

updating the policy. A revised policy will go to Cabinet that clearly sets out entitlement and is not open to interpretation.

RESOLVED:

The update was noted and:

- Members agreed that a further update on the service will be provided at the 19th October 2022 committee meeting. The update will include the review of the policy, points made around communication, and the realty of how the service performed in September 2022.
- Sue Harrison will provide Members with the timescale for the review of the policy by e-mail.
- Members to contact the AD, Home to School Transport / Children and Young People Travel Service if they have specific questions regarding the transformation programme.

9. YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN

(See document No. 5)

Dionne McAndrew, AD, Vulnerable Young People, Children's Trust, and Janine Saleh, Head of Service, Youth Offending Service were in attendance for this item.

The Chair introduced the item and informed Members that the draft Strategic Youth Justice Plan 2022/2023 was included in the papers for discussion at today's meeting.

Dionne McAndrew highlighted that the last inspection was disappointing and concerning, in relation to the breadth of issues and they had been unaware of the weaknesses identified. The plan last year focused on the improvements from the inspection. This year's plan is broader.

Other issues highlighted by Officers included:

- They have appointed an independent chair to the Board, who brings appropriate challenge and support.
- There are real challenges around crime and disorder.
- There are high levels of criminal exploitation against our vulnerable young people.
- This is an ambitious plan that has been driven by research and is centralising relationship practice in everything they do with our children. This includes care, and takes a strength based approach, aligning with the vision for children in the city.
- They will be launching the Youth Offending Service (YOS) Prevention Team and improving the early help offer.
- They are strengthening how they respond when children are at risk to others or risk to themselves, and they will be launching a modernised risk reduction policy.

- They have plans to re-invigorate and tackle issues in relation to overrepresented children, which includes children in care.
- They will be strengthening their statutory duty to offer support to victims, so they get the right services if they want them.
- There is more work to be done in relation to the health needs of the children, as they have suffered from disproportionate trauma and adversity, and they want the health offer to be the best it can be, and they have established a health taskforce.
- School exclusion is an issue and they have established their own YOS virtual school
- How they embed genuine participation in YOS is being explored and they are focusing on the basics.
- They have invested heavily in workforce development and modernising the training and they are planning to draw in their magistrate colleagues.
- There is lots to do and they have a committed leadership and wider management team, with a robust improvement plan and they are continually monitoring this.

During the discussion and in response to queries raised by Members, the main points included:

- Reassurance around funding for the additional posts to sustain the improvements was requested. They have attracted some additional shortterm funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner. However, much of the additional resources were resources they already had that have been realigned.
- The Prevention Team will decide which is the best agency to contact so the
 offer is joined up to support the child and family. They are focusing on
 relationships, as these are very important, and they have a fantastic offer
 around education and improving employment opportunities. More
 information on this will be forwarded.
- Relationship are continuing to be developed with the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA).
- The YOS is predominantly set up for children who have been convicted of any offence and are 10-17 years old (up to 18^{th} birthday), and this is dependent on the point they become known to the Police. It was agreed this will be further discussed outside the Committee meeting.
- They have a holistic approach with multi agencies being involved, and they
 have a strong relationship with EmpowerU, which is the child exploitation hub
 etc.
- They have done a substantial amount of work around Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) training and there is more to do.
- The service is contributing to the Serious Violence Strategy and this is multiagency with the Community Safety Partnership being involved.

The Chair thanked Members for the questions and feedback and is pleased to hear about the passion and focus from officers of the service. Also, officers can send information that the Committee would find useful during the course of what they are doing.

Fiona Bottrill commented that Amelia Murray, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, will be in touch with Officers in relation to the Child Criminal Exploitation and County Lines Scrutiny Inquiry.

RESOLVED:

- Members were consulted on the draft Strategic Youth Justice Plan 2022/2023.
- Further information on education and improving employment opportunities will be forwarded.
- Cllr Morriam Jan will discuss the case she referred to with officers outside the Committee meeting.
- Officers to send useful information to the Committee during the course of what they are doing.

10. WORK PROGRAMME

(See document No. 6)

The Chair commented that Members had agreed earlier in the committee meeting that a further update on SEND improvement would be an item at the 7th September 2022 committee meeting. In addition, the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families will be attending.

The DfE Commissioner for SEND has confirmed he will be attending the 19th October 2022 committee meeting. Members had agreed earlier in the meeting that there would also be an update from the Home to School Transport / Children and Young People Travel Service at that meeting.

The Co-ordinating O&S Committee agreed that this Committee will lead on the Child Criminal Exploitation and County Lines Scrutiny Inquiry, and the Committee will also be involved in the Children and Young People's Mental Health Scrutiny inquiry, with the Health and Social Care O&S Committee leading on this. The Chair asked for expressions of interest to be on the Task and Finish Group by Friday, 22nd July 2022, and Members who had to leave due to the meeting overrunning will be e-mailed.

Cllr Simon Morrall expressed concerns regarding the SEND Improvement Board and the review into the Special Educational Needs and Disability Information, Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS). A request was made for a report to come as a matter of urgency to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the review of SENDIASS. The Chair replied that she will discuss this outside the committee meeting with officers and requested Cllr Morrall forwards the e-mail he referred to.

The Chair advised that Members have received an e-mail regarding the Cabinet Member for Transport attending the Sustainability and Transport O&S Committee's meeting on 27th July 2022, where the motion at City Council will be discussed.

RESOLVED:

- The work programme to be updated accordingly.
- Cllr Simon Morrall to forward the e-mail he referred to regarding SENDIASS and the Chair will have discussions with officers outside the committee meeting.

11. DATE OF MEETINGS 2022/23

RESOLVED:

- Noted the meetings to be held at 1000 hours on the following Wednesdays:
 7 September 2022, 19 October 2022, 30 November 2022, 4 January 2023, 22 February 2023, 5 April 2023, and 17 May 2023.
- Approved Wednesdays at 1000 hours as suitable day and time each week for any additional meetings required to consider 'request for call in' which may be lodged in respect of Executive decisions.

12. REQUEST(S) FOR CALL IN/COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION/PETITIONS RECEIVED (IF ANY)

None.

13. OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

None.

14. AUTHORITY TO CHAIR AND OFFICERS

RESOLVED:

In an urgent situation between meetings, the Chair jointly with the relevant Chief Officer has authority to act on behalf of the Committee.

The meeting ended at 13.10 hours.

Accelerated Progress Plan – Update / Highlight Report since July 2022

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 7th September 2022



The Birmingham C&F Directorate vision



Birmingham Children Thrive

All children and young people are Safe, Healthy, Included, Confident and Achieving

They are supported by a Children's Services Directorate that has strong governance and management, engaged staff, clear strategy

and

Partnership organisations across the city that work together as one system putting children and families at the heart of everything they do

Birmingham Children Thrive











Delivered through our principles:

- Identifying and supporting early aiming to get it right first time
- Professionals and services that wrap around our children and families
- Strengths based and relationship based practice with our children, families, each other and our partners















The national consultation on SEND and inclusion

- The green paper, "Right support, right place, right time", commits to identifying children's needs more quickly.
- Education secretary Nadhim Zahawi says it will also restore families' trust in an "inclusive education system with excellent mainstream provision that puts children and young people first".
- The proposed policies look to establish a "single national SEND and alternative provision system that sets clear standards for the provision that children and young people should expect to receive".













What does the commissioner say?

John Coughlan, DfE SEND Commissioner references in his report that:

"There is a crisis of appropriate provision for SEND children in Birmingham which will need collective will to address. One element of that is that there are not enough children with EHCPs that are being supported by mainstream schools in a system which simply isn't consistently inclusive enough. On the other hand, he has seen at first hand some excellent inclusive schools and school leaders whose work can be replicated."













Evolution of Local Strategies

- The developments for the key local strategies within the APP are going well.
- Objective 1 is developing strategies for
 - i) SEND;
 - ii) Learning and Development, and;
 - iii) Workforce Development
- Objective 4 is developing
 - i) the Inclusion Strategy
- Co-Production principles are being followed to develop the above













Things we learned from the co-production workshops for SEND & Inclusion strategies

- Pooled resource and collaborative deployment;
- **2) District** working, 'team around the school';
- Stronger data recording to inform decision making and analysis of trends and for forecasting for the future;
- 4) Statutory functions, clearly defined responsibilities and resourced appropriately;
- 5) Delivering a graduated response so that needs are met earlier and trust is built;
- 6) Capacity and sufficiency required with peer to peer support and outreach;
- 7) Learning from existing good practice in Birmingham;
- Communication and sharing for every stakeholder about who does what in 'The System';













Key data

- SENAR currently maintains 11,421 EHCPs
- In August 2021 SENAR maintained 10,914 EHCPs
- 2,048 new assessment requests were received in the last 12 months
- 1,231 new EHCPs were issued in the last 12 months
- In July 2021 51% of plans were issued within the 20 week statutory timeframe
- In July 2022 66% of plans were issued within the 20 week statutory timeframe (National Indicator is 65%)
- The number of annual reviews needing to be completed has reduced from 4,500 to 720 as at end of July 2022

• The number of annual reviews undertaken by the team is increasing month on month to continue to clear the backlog whilst maintaining new reviews as they fall due.

iviai	аі Арі	iviay	Juli	Jui	
344	44 346	632	859	1085	

- As confirmed at the last meeting of this committee, 98% of all 'Phase Transfers' were completed for the 2022/23 academic year compared to 1% the previous year.
- The phase transfer process for Sept 2023 has begun.















Objective 1 – System Leadership

- Local Offer website has been refreshed with really good input from users (parents/carers and young people) to support changes.
- These include the navigation around the site, the presentation and look and feel of the site and the background functionality, ensuring information is easier to access and more swiftly.
- Further refreshing to the Local Offer website will be taking place in the coming months.
- An apprentice post is being recruited to which will have a responsibility for maintaining up-to-date information and working with stakeholders to improve the social media and digital content of the and from the Local Offer website.
- Data Sharing Agreement refresh and processes ready for signing













Objective 2 – Getting the Basics Right

- Standard Operating Procedures have been written and are being refined for the 'core' processes
- Quality Assurance Framework has been developed and finalised
- Recruitment Drive underway for maintaining appropriate staffing levels in SENAR
- Review and adjustments to therapy offer has been completed and implementation of the changes will commence at the start of the Autumn term.













Objective 3 – Working Together Well

- Worked so well together, objective now 'signed off' (at last SIB) and activities to be embedded as Business As Usual across local area
- Co-Production Framework and Charter, Comms and Engagement Strategy and Independent Review of SENDIASS complete
- Participation and Co-Production Officer functions and JD completed and ready to recruit to
- Youth Engagement events took place in July and survey issued to gather intelligence from young people
- Over 100 responses to the survey received and it will close in September.













Objective 4 - Pathways

- Working group well established and starting to build on and develop the local pathways for post-16 options and improve tracking processes
- Working group for 'Out of School Process' is reviewing current systems, assessing impact of the new attendance guidance and identifying where improvements can be made
- DLP delivering some really good outcomes and review to be published in September to share the learning
- Special Schools Outreach Support to be delivered in Autumn term













Golden threads within objectives to deliver greatest impact

- Graduated Response to supporting children and young people
- Child centred (not process/service) approach
- Co-Production and hearing the voice of the child
- Support for settings/services to deliver early intervention
- District working with potential for local decision making
- Multi-agency training and interactions across the local area
- Improved data recording and reporting
- Greater number of children and young people educated in mainstream settings in line with their needs and a graduated response













SENDIASS Review and Actions

Context/Summary

Independent Review undertaken by National Children's Bureau

All recommendations from the review are accepted in principle with the full support of the commissioner, pending a full report to this board

- A particular focus on compliance with the statutory minimum standards
- Co-production to ensure stakeholders are taken 'on the journey' is crucial
- No families will be disadvantaged by the changes as we carefully manage the transition













SENDIASS Review and Actions

Actions and next steps

- Work has commenced to ensure any statutory or early help social care (casework) functions are continued. Current staff who provide this support will transition to Birmingham Children's Trust where they will be supported and supervised. Family support will not be disrupted.
- SENDIASS core work will remain with the current SENDIASS team. The SENDIASS team will continue to provide valuable advice regarding the SEND code of practice and support families as they navigate through the complex SEND system.
- The timetable to implement the SENDIASS service recommendations will run from now until approximately September 2023 so we can ensure all stakeholders are briefed and coproduction can be delivered effectively.
- The SENDIASS service will comply with all the minimum statutory requirements by September 2023 and a Compliance Roadmap will be presented to the SEND Improvement Board in January 2023 to demonstrate how compliance will be achieved.





















birmingham.gov.uk



BE BOLD BE BIRMINGHAM











EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 7 SEPTEMBER 2022

PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW OF CABINET MEMBER CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES

REPORT BY: COUNCILLOR KAREN MCCARTHY

1. Purpose of report

This report sets out portfolio priorities for the Cabinet Member Children Young People and Families for 2022/23 and provides an update on areas of responsibility.

2. Portfolio responsibilities

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families has accountability for:

Area	Further detail
Lead Member for Children's Services	Political accountability for all the local authority children's services, including education and children's social care. This post is required by law to hold direct local accountability for the effectiveness, availability, and value for money of the local authority's children's services (particularly education and children's social care).
Safeguarding Children and Young People	With statutory partners, the safety and wellbeing of all children.
Children's Services	Leadership, strategy, and effectiveness of children's services – responding to the needs of all children and young people, especially the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families and carers.
Overseeing the Children's Trust	Oversight of the 'client side' role of the Children's Trust to ensure the delivery of agreed outcomes, KPIs and finances within the legal and contractual framework agreed
Overseeing Early Years	Ensuring a sufficiency of places and a citywide Early Years Health and Wellbeing offer.
Corporate Parenting	Political leadership on improving the lives of looked after children. Ensuring all Council members, officers and services understand and actively promote the Council's responsibilities to looked after children.
Lead Member for Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) and Inclusion	Lead Member for Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) and Inclusion – Lead Member on the SEND agenda across children's agencies and

	holding officers and partners to account for the delivery of the Birmingham SEND Strategy.
Education of Children and Young People	Political leadership on strategic and statutory duties, including school improvement, school places and travel to and from school. Oversight of Dedicated Schools Grant
Youth Engagement and Youth Service	Youth Engagement and Youth Service, along with Lifelong Learning (post 14 skills and adult education) – Clear progression and vocational pathways from education into further and higher education and employment. Provision of all-age guidance, skills development, training, and work experience to meet the economic needs of the city now and in the future.
Skills and Entrepreneurship in schools	Development of 14-19 career pathways, enterprise, and entrepreneurship in Birmingham schools.

3. Lead Member for Children's Services

As set out in DfE statutory guidance, the Lead Member for Children's Services (LMCS) is responsible for ensuring that the needs of all children and young people, including the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families and carers, are addressed. In doing so, the LMCS will work closely with other local partners to improve the outcomes and well-being of children and young people. The LMCS should have regard to the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child and ensure that children and young people are involved in the development and delivery of local services. As politicians, LMCSs should not get drawn into the detailed day-to-day operational management of education and children's services. They should, however, provide strong, strategic leadership and support and challenge to the DCS and relevant members of their senior team as appropriate.

4. Children and Families Directorate

The Children and Families Directorate has a total staff headcount of 1,757 and directly delivers 26 service areas, mostly sitting under the Children, Young People and Families Cabinet portfolio. These include early years, SEND and inclusion, education safeguarding, universal education services, careers, youth services and 14-19 education. The directorate supports 320,000 children and young people with universal services, of which around 10,500 have an Education, Health and Care Plan and approximately 4,400 vulnerable children receive support from the Virtual School.

In addition, the directorate also delivers services sitting under the Digital, Culture, Heritage and Tourism portfolio (libraries) and Deputy Leader's portfolio (adult education, employability and skills).

5. Improvement Journey and Priorities

The Children and Families Directorate is on a journey to improve, to ensure children and families have stable, sustainable services, underpinned by robust support and

capacity to continuously improve. The DfE appointed Commissioner, John Coughlan, continues to have oversight of all the key improvements that relate to improving services for children and young people with SEND. Whilst some services are performing well, others need to continue to improve. The vision that Birmingham's children are safe, healthy, included, confident and achieving underpins the ambition to see all our children and young people thrive.

The newly re-established Birmingham Children's Partnership, which draws together the key agencies and organisation that support children and families, is developing a new Children and Young People's Plan for the city which will be published in during 2022/23

Strategic Priorities for 2022/23

- 1. Strengthen approaches to identify, recognise and respond to the vulnerability of specific groups of children and young people
- 2. Transform and improve services for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities in line with statutory requirements and to deliver sustainable, well performing services, with inclusion of children and young people at the heart
- 3. Transform and improve Children and Young People's Travel to deliver a sustainable, well performing service, with outcomes for children and young people at its heart
- 4. Ensure services are sustainable, compliant with statutory requirements, and designed to deliver best outcomes for children, young people, families, and communities

Education priorities

- To ensure that all children and young people, particularly in the primary phase in education, achieve better outcomes by aiming to reach top quartile performance through:
 - o improving attainment, particularly in phonics, and at the end of KS2
 - o improving attendance, particularly in primary schools
 - reducing exclusions, particularly in the 13% of primary schools who permanently excluded in 2019/20 (87% of primary schools in Birmingham made no permanent exclusions in 2019-20 and 32% made no suspensions)
 - developing our systems to support and challenge schools, together with our commissioned provider of school improvement, the Birmingham Education Partnership (BEP), so that the percentage of schools and settings judged by Ofsted as good or better improves from the current 83.1%
- To ensure that particularly vulnerable children, including those from refugee families and particularly those in temporary accommodation and those with 'No Recourse to Public Funds', receive support to access learning consistently.
- To ensure there is resilience in educational leadership with a focus on current presenting challenges such as schools' finances, schools' sustainability, and teacher wellbeing in addition to the opportunities possible through the white paper on education.

Early Years priorities

The key priorities to improve children's readiness for school across the city include:

- improving the take-up of early years entitlements
- supporting key areas of need, such as speech and language development
- adopting an approach to transition in the early years which supports children and their families, particularly those with SEND, to make a good start to their education in primary school

Commissioning priorities

The areas of focus for Commissioning next year include:

- Completion of contract re-negotiation with Birmingham Children's Trust towards a more strategic partnering relationship over a longer contract period
- Development and implementation of family hubs
- Cost of Care Exercises for services without current frameworks
- Further develop the Contract Management Framework (to align with the Corporate Procurement Approach and changes in legislation)
- Early Help Outcomes Framework and commissioning with BCT and agree long term arrangements for Early Help
- Review of the Therapy Arrangements to support children with SEND
- Review and where needed re commission Short Breaks provision for disabled children

6. Progress in key areas

6.1 Directorate

Soon after the appointment of the new Director of Children's Services, the council renamed the former Education and Skills Directorate to the Children and Families Directorate to ensure there is clear emphasis and understanding of the Directorate and the services it delivers and influences for children, young people and their families, ensuring children and young people are at the heart of all our services and focus.

6.2 Directorate Leadership and Management sufficiency and stability

A critical foundation of the improvement journey is to have a permanent and stable leadership team with capacity to:

- Drive improvement and transformation.
- Develop long lasting relationships with partners; and
- Provide the environment where staff can thrive.

During 2022 significant progress has been made in creating a sufficient and stable senior leadership team to support Sue Harrison, Director of Children and Families. A revised Children's Services leadership team structure was agreed by Cabinet on 7 June 2022. A permanent Deputy Director and Director of Commissioning and Strategy, Helen Price, joined Birmingham on 4th July and a permanent Director of SEND, Helen Ellis, will join on 1st November. Marion Gibbon, Assistant Director Public Health, has joined the Children and Families Senior Leadership Team and Lisa Fraser

is Assistant Director Education and Early Years. Interim appointments have been made to the Assistant Director Lifelong Learning and Assistant Director Thriving Children and Families roles, which are to be advertised on a permanent basis in the autumn. An appointment process is underway for the two-year fixed term Assistant Director Children's Travel Service.

Getting the basics right

Since January 2022 there has been a focus on ensuring the building blocks are being put in place for the whole Directorate to improve, which includes:

- **Baselining services:** All services and teams have been 'baselined' to establish a comprehensive 'position statement' of services their performance, compliance with statutory obligations and requirements, their funding, and their composition. The findings from this exercise have informed the improvement plan.
- Children and Families Improvement: Cabinet Report presented in June 2022 identifying resources required for improvement and transformation for next phase; further Cabinet Report to follow in November 2022 to establish the resources required for the next phase of transformation.
- A Children's Services Improvement board has been established.
- Developing the Improving Services for Children and Families Plan: The activity and projects which will enable the improvements required to take place are overseen by a multi-disciplinary board. The Plan is currently under development and is informed by the baselining activity.
- **Culture and practice:** Crucial to the Improvement Programme and Future Children's Services model is Restorative Practice an evidenced based approach to delivering successful children and families services. this approach will be rolled out across services during Autumn 2022.
- Staff: Regular fortnightly staff communications are now in place; Monthly Staff Induction sessions; First Staff Pulse Survey took place in April 2022 to inform the improvement journey; Staff Reference Group now in place meeting monthly; Termly All Staff Events are now being embedded. A new Leadership Forum, bringing together all Heads of Service/senior leaders on a monthly basis is in place.

6.3 SEND and Inclusion

Work continues to address the areas of significant weakness within SEND and Inclusion that were identified by Ofsted/CQC with progress being reported regularly, including to this committee. A permanent Director of SEND and Inclusion, Helen Ellis, will be joining BCC in November 2022 to further strengthen leadership in this area.

The SEND Improvement board meets monthly, chaired by Birmingham's SEND Commissioner. The board monitors the partnership's progress against the <u>Accelerated Progress Plan</u>.

Birmingham's SEND strategy is being refreshed in collaboration with partners and stakeholders. This strategy will link with the Inclusion Strategy, the SEND Sufficiency Strategy and the Children and Young People's Plan.

Additional staff have been recruited to the SENAR service. Since the increase in staffing, children & young people and their families are receiving more timely

education, health and care plans, which means children and young people are being provided with the support they need more quickly. The percentage of EHCP assessments being completed within 20 weeks (65% in May 2022 compared to 53% in May 2021 and a national average of 65%).

The statutory deadlines for issuing EHCP school phase transfers were met for 90.91% of reception placements, 96.55% of Year 2 placements and 98.82% of secondary placements. This compared to 0% in 2021.

As children move between phases of education, this can be a difficult time if clarity about the next place/setting has not been provided. Where a child has an EHCP this can cause additional anxiety for parents and children without knowing the place and the support being put in place. Every local authority has a statutory responsibility to ensure families and children know what the next setting/school will be when transferring from Nursery to Reception, Reception to Primary and from Primary to Secondary. At the time of writing the statutory deadline is 15th February every year for these 'phase transfers'.

When children and families are not aware where they will be educated until past the statutory deadline, i.e., too late, this causes more anxiety. Without knowing where the child is going also makes it very difficult for children/families to appeal or challenge the proposed education setting (should they wish to) and creates a spike of activity at an already busy time of year. There will always be reasons for any anomalies, including lack of available places, parental preference changing, education settings looking for support with their ability to meet needs.

Through improving the experience for children and families by ensuring the vast majority have clarity on where their child will be educated Birmingham has:

- i) ensured children are not unnecessarily distressed;
- ii) relieved anxiety about what is happening next;
- iii) built much better trust with families;
- iv) developed resilience in the system to support with appeals.

Averaging greater than 90% is a tremendous effort but it is important for us to strive to deliver 100% for all families at these key phase transfer points as well as improve the other aspects of the system for the future.

We recognise there is a lot more still to do in this area but there is growing confidence in the partnerships commitment to improving the quality of its SEND services for children and their families recognise the frustrations of some of our service users; it has taken some time to ensure the current strategic leadership and delivery plans are in place to ensure the steady incremental change needed to deliver a sustainable system that continuously improves. The lead member will continue to hold officers to account and closely monitor progress.

Work on our SEND sufficiency is progressing and is aligned with the wider SEND and Inclusion Strategy and Accelerated Progress Plan. This will help to ensure we have sufficient special school places for those who need them, alongside adequate

mainstream resourced provision which enables young people to access their local mainstream school with some additional support.

A working group has been set up to review a set of commissioned forecasts from Edge Analytics Ltd and meets weekly. The focus is on:

- sharing data on demand, including pupils in independent provision or in other authority areas, as well as pupils not in education, pupils awaiting an EHCP, pupils awaiting a different placement or tribunal outcomes
- updating information on commissioned numbers and the supply of places for Sep 2022 and to progress 2023/24 options, including:
 - making creative use of existing space and buildings, exploring new funding models for expansion projects and driving lean construction through effective programme and project management tools
 - making best use of funding sources available
 - considering the impact of conditions of our current estate for continued reliance on existing good and outstanding schools, sustainability and sufficiency, ensuring maintenance and the quality of accommodation remain up to standard

Birmingham will be submitting three bids for Free School provision in advance of the October 2022 deadline.

6.4 Early Years

Children should have accessed their early education entitlement and reached expected educational and developmental milestones by the time they start KS1 at age five. Children who take up their early education entitlement (for targeted two-year-olds and all three and four year olds) are far more likely than those who did not to achieve a good level of development at the end of Foundation Stage.

In 2019 (which is the last set of published data available), 68% of all children in Birmingham reached a good level of development. Of those, we know that just under 10% of the cohort of Birmingham children completing Foundation Stage had not accessed any of their early education entitlement at all. Where they hadn't accessed early education only 53% of these children achieved a good level of development, compared with 70% of children who had accessed at least some of their early education entitlement, an attainment gap of 17%. Children who have accessed early education consistently achieve above those who have not regardless of background.

The main priority is improving children's outcomes and narrowing the attainment gap. As the information on attainment indicates, a basic core element to improving outcomes is to increase the take-up of the early years' entitlements.

Early education take-up

Early education entitlement (EEE) take-up by 2-year-olds and 3 and 4-year-olds in Birmingham is lower than the national level but improvements are being seen on the levels of take-up before the COVID-19 pandemic:

Spring term 2022 EEE take up for eligible 2-year-olds increased citywide by 3% compared to spring term 2020 which was pre-COVID. 8 out of the 10 districts

- had an increase in take-up most notably Northfield and Edgbaston districts. There was no change in take up rates for Hodge Hill and Yardley districts.
- A recovery has also been seen in 3 and 4-year-old take-up with participation returning to 88% in spring term 2022 (1% higher than the same period in 2020). There are four districts where take-up is lower (Hodge Hill 2%; Northfield 1%; Sutton Coldfield 1%; and Yardley 2%).

The Early Years team uses detailed take-up data broken down by age, ethnicity, and district to target areas of greatest concern.

Readiness for school – new initiatives

- WellComm supports speech, language, and communication development. The impact will be measurable as each child's progress is tracked within their setting from the point of admission.
- The Balanced System is currently being introduced across the city. It will map early years speech, language, and communication services to inform the implementation of inclusive district-based services for families.
- Birmingham Early Years Transition Approach has been developed by a multiagency team to support school readiness and will be used for the first time in 2022 reception intake.

6.5 Education of children and young people

Education Performance

The latest complete published data was included in the <u>Education Performance Report 2019</u> and presented to Overview and Scrutiny. Published data for 2022 will be analysed by officers and a comprehensive presentation on education performance, including the 2022 Education Performance Report with validated data will come to Overview and Scrutiny later in the municipal year.

Key Education achievements

- School leaders have galvanised around the SAFE taskforce. The SAFE taskforce is DfE funded and schools-led, targeting young people at risk of exclusion and exploitation through a range of initiatives, both within and outside the school day.
- Analysis of section 175/157 returns enable us to target advice, support, and challenge on safeguarding matters with schools and settings; analysis further informs the safeguarding training offer where identified themes and trends are shared with partners, such as the Birmingham Safeguarding Children Partnership.
- Prevent education is a mature system which has recently been positively peer reviewed by a partnership led by Luton Council.
- The UNICEF Rights Respecting School Award is now held by over 240 schools across the city and has significantly contributed to schools' curricula and the personal development of children and young people in Birmingham. A celebration event was held at the Rep Theatre in July 2022 to celebrate schools' achievements in this programme. BCC's plans to seek accreditation as a UNICEF Child Friendly City will further enhance this work.

Pupil place planning

An annual pupil place planning sufficiency strategy is produced. Officers work through the implications with schools to ensure the right number of places are available for children and young people in Birmingham. In practice this means expanding the number of places (for example in secondary and special schools) and reducing them where there are too many.

Attendance

Attendance, particularly in the primary phase, is an area requiring focus. In Birmingham, overall absence was 0.6% higher in Autumn 2020 than Autumn 2019 and with slightly higher than average rises for pupils eligible for free school meals and those on SEN support. The smallest rise was for pupils attending special schools. During the same period, however, absence rates in England fell slightly, so there is now a gap of 0.8% between Birmingham's overall absence rate and the national picture.

Action being taken to improve attendance:

- Statutory legal processes for attendance are well established in Birmingham and are particularly effective in the secondary phase.
- We have consulted with schools to reduce the threshold for issuing education penalty notices from September 2022 as part of the updating of our Education Penalty Notice Code of Conduct.
- We are improving the way that attendance data, particularly of vulnerable children, can be analysed so that we can intervene sooner.
- A key element of our FAST Track to Attendance process is Early Help intervention and associated multi-agency working.
- We are developing a strategy for school attendance that reflects the recently updated DfE attendance guidance.

Work to reduce exclusions

Permanent exclusion rates in Birmingham remain above the overall national rate and across the education phases, but most notably in primary schools. Birmingham is ranked 100 out of 152 local authorities overall, with the rank for secondary school pupils at 85 and for primary school pupils at 137. Permanent exclusion rates in primary schools in Birmingham are higher than for core cities and statistical neighbour councils. However, for pupils in secondary schools, Birmingham's permanent exclusion rate is lower than for statistical neighbours and on a par with core cities.

Year	Permanent exclusions (all schools)				Permanent exclusions Secondary schools	
	Birmingham	England	Birmingham	England	Birmingham	England
2019/20	0.08%	0.06%	0.04%	0.02%	0.14%	0.12%
2018-19	0.12%	0.10%	0.08%	0.02%	0.18%	0.20%
2017-18	0.11%	0.10%	0.09%	0.03%	0.15%	0.20%
2016-17	0.13%	0.10%	0.08%	0.03%	0.20%	0.20%

Suspension rates in Birmingham are lower than national average overall. For 2019-20, when children were out of school from the COVID-19 lockdown from March 23rd to the end of the school year, suspension rates fell across the country. Suspension rates in primary schools are higher than national average. Birmingham secondary schools continue to outperform the national average for suspensions.

Year	Silenaneinne fall echaniei		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Suspensions (secondary schools)	
	Birmingham	England	Birmingham	England	Birmingham	England
2019/20	3.05%	3.76%	1.10%	1%	5.48%	7.43%
2018-19	4.22%	5.36%	1.58%	1.41%	7.61%	10.75%
2017-18	4.24%	5.08%	1.82%	1.40%	7.44%	10.13%
2016-17	4.29%	4.76%	1.95%	1.37%	7.51%	9.40%

Officers continue to work with schools, teachers and partners (for example West Midlands Police and Birmingham Children's Trust's youth offending team) to offer support to keep children and young people in school. This includes direct support to teachers, developing support for children and families directly and working together in local networks to provide a fuller range of help to solve the issues that are leading to children being excluded.

Admissions

Two successful school place offer days took place earlier this year for admission to school in September 2022. The team now has a well-established process for online applications and in recent years has improved communication with parents about applying for school places.

For September 2022 entry to secondary school, 94.93% of Birmingham applicants were offered one of their preferred schools compared to 95.8% nationally. 70.80% of Birmingham applicants were offered their first preference, compared to 83.3% nationally. In Birmingham families are able to list up to six preferences, including grammar schools.

For entry to reception class in September 2022, 99% of Birmingham applicants were offered a place at one of their preferred schools compared to 98.4% nationally. 90.99% of Birmingham applicants were offered their first preference, compared to 92.2% nationally.

Applications for secondary school places for September 2023 will open at the start of September 2022 with the closing date of 31 October 2022.

The Admissions team has worked with colleagues and partners to support the admission to Birmingham schools of 131 Ukrainian children who have arrived in the city through the Homes for Ukraine scheme. Additional support and guidance has

been provided to schools, as was the case with previous arrivals under similar resettlement schemes.

6.6 Youth Engagement and the Youth Service

Birmingham Youth Service

Youth work is based on a youth worker building a positive relationship with a young person which is based on trust and mutual respect and then using that relationship to support and develop the learning experiences and personal development of the young person.

Birmingham Youth Service supports around 18,300 young people each year. It is an open access service available to all young people with most of its 16 centres based in areas of greatest need within the city. Within this open access service, it delivers targeted work to respond to local need (youth violence, exploitation, employment, preventing violent extremism, health and wellbeing, sexual health to different groups of young people). The Youth Service offers a broad range of opportunities, experiences, and activities relevant to the needs of young people. Each Birmingham Youth Centre offers:

- information, advice, and support to young people by a qualified youth worker
- a safe place for young people somewhere they can be emotionally and physically safe.
- a positive relationship with a "trusted adult" (the youth worker) which is built on honesty, respect and is non-judgemental.
- The Umbrella Scheme which provides sexual health programmes, STI testing and condom distribution.
- targeted programmes including PVE, youth violence, sexual health, health, activities, and employment
- opportunities for young people to get involved in activities including drama, sports, events, residential experiences.
- volunteering opportunities
- Youth Participation an opportunity for young person's voices to be heard.
- intensive support for NEET young people
- Resilience 2 Resolve Youth Violence programme

Resilience 2 Resolve

The role of youth work is recognised as crucial in supporting children and young people vulnerable to criminal exploitation and involvement in violent crime. The council identified a one-off investment of £1 million into the youth service to employ more youth workers to tackle youth violence.

This programme delivers on the youth violence agenda through early Intervention work, targeting focus areas, promoting, and leading on system change and promoting strategic alignment of services on this agenda. This will be achieved by building young people's resilience through developing their skills, abilities, self-worth, values, and identity.

The four key areas that are being invested in are:

- detached youth work
- early intervention programmes in schools focussing on Year 6

- working with partners to enhance the early intervention offer to young people.
- enhancing core delivery and branding our centres as safe spaces

Youth City Board

The Youth City Board, a sub-group of the City Board, is a group of 45 active young people aged 11-18 from across the city. The role of the board is to ensure young people's voices are at the heart of policy and strategy. Elected members of UK Youth Parliament are part of the Youth City Board.

In the last 24 months, young people have led on several initiatives, including:

- "Education During the Pandemic" the voice of 1100 young people
- Young people's Mental Health Survey
- Members on Public Health Professional Theme Groups
- Redevelopment and regeneration projects City Centre/Perry Barr/Druids Heath
- Youth Covid Champions
- Commonwealth Games young people operating a small grants award to other young people to improve their mental health (total funding for this is £50k) and advising on the development of the CWG youth programme.
- · Chairing the young people's IAG with WMP
- Writing the Youth Violence Duty alongside the Community Safety Partnership

7. Birmingham Children's Trust and Corporate Parenting

Our Birmingham Children's Trust continues to meet the needs of our children, young people, and their families. The enduring impact of the pandemic has seen an increase in the volume and complexity of the challenges faced by children and their families in Birmingham. Throughout the pandemic our Trust maintained face-to-face contact with children, young people, and families, and maintained leadership of 'system working' with partners in the Council, the Police, the NHS, and the voluntary sector.

Our residential care offer continued throughout the year and, following Ofsted visits, our homes were judged to have maintained their effectiveness. However, Camborne children's home received a full inspection in May which judged it to be Inadequate. But a subsequent monitoring visit on 20 July reviewed the progress made since the full inspection and confirmed that out of the 10 requirements made at the last inspection, four have been met and progress has been made in respect of the other requirements, and there is an action plan in place to address the outstanding areas for improvement. In August, Ofsted found our children's home Warwick House to be overall Good.

Despite the challenge we have maintained, again, strong performance in relation to the performance indicators captured in the contract, and across the broader sweep of children's performance indicators.

External regulation and inspection confirm the progress we are making. In August 2021 Ofsted inspected the Trust's independent fostering agency and concluded it provides effective services that meet the requirements for Good; in October 2021 Ofsted conducted a focused visit where they examined our offer to children in care.

The letter following the visit was published in December 2021 and is a positive reflection of the Trust's work. More recently, in August, we hosted Ofsted for two days to enable them to undertake a test of some new recording software, and in return gave us a view of how we are delivering our services to Care Leavers. This was valuable for us, and Ofsted have left us with a clear and mainly positive picture of where we are and of where we need to focus our energy and our attention now. We now anticipate a full inspection, leading to, we hope, an improved 'grade', within the next 12 months.

Our team-mates across the Children's Trust have been fantastic in the last year: committed, creative, determined, in enduring conditions of the pandemic, to support and to safeguard the most vulnerable, and to provide good care, support and opportunities to the children and young people in our care, and to our careleavers to name a few.

Progress

Appendix 1 sets out our Children's Trust's key priorities and progress. Notable continuous improvements in the service offer and the partnership working across the city include:

- establishing our Stronger Families programme, aligning, and investing in Trust and third sector services that support families to care for their children.
- developing the multi-agency EmpowerU Hub leading work on exploitation: supporting victims, tackling perpetrators, disrupting networks.
- initiating and developing the city's Early Help offer, again a multi-agency and multi-sector development supporting families earlier.
- working with Adult Services to develop the Preparation for Adulthood service, filling a gap in provision for young people becoming young adults and in need of advice and support.
- building and implementing our Practice Model for the Trust, built on the importance of relationship-based practice.
- introducing new multi-disciplinary capacity and support in our social work teams (domestic abuse, adult mental health) to enhance our skills and offer specialist support.
- reviewing and overhauling services to effect improvement: in the last year this includes our Disabled Children service and our Families Together service.
- building and leading partnership responses during the pandemic. We established, and still chair, the Partnership Operations Group, with 40 organisations represented, working together to support our most vulnerable children, young people, and families.
- completing the next phase of our capital investment in providing better space for child protection conference facilities in the south of the city.

Performance

The Trust performed well, in 2021/22, in relation to the contractual performance indicators, appendix 2 provides a summary of performance.

The Trust's Annual QA and Performance Report provides a fuller account of performance and highlights areas of success and issues requiring attention.

As well as the performance measures, the Trust has a well-embedded Quality Assurance framework, overseen by the Practice Hub. This includes a wide range of performance audits, the learning from which feeds back into practice to drive improvement. Reports on our quality assurance work are shared with the Operational Commissioning Group.

The feedback we get from children, young people, and family members about the work we do is a key strand of how we 'measure' how we are doing. Our Rights and Participation service plays a significant role not only in advocating for our young people, but in ensuring their voices are heard clearly and continue to shape the services we offer.

Areas of particularly strong performance in the year have included placement stability for children in care, care leavers living in suitable accommodation, timely reviews for children in care and timeliness of initial child protection conferences.

Performance has been below target in the indicator measuring the number of agency social workers: this reflects a combination of the impact of the pandemic on sickness levels, compounding the ongoing recruitment and retention challenges. The average time between the Trust receiving court authority to place a child for adoption and deciding on a match has been slightly outside tolerance range – and while better than the average for statistical neighbours, performance is poorer than the national average. An ambitious target of 85 adoptions in the year was set for 2021/22. There were 73 adoptions in the year. This is due to the impact of the pandemic and delays in court for a number of children meaning that adoption orders that could have been granted in 2021/22 will now be granted in 2022/23. We are confident that the new Regional Adoption Agency will assist us in improving our performance.

In achieving our ambition in the coming year, we recognise we have some key dependencies: changes and ongoing improvements not directly in the gift of the Trust but critical to our ongoing improvement. These include:

- ongoing SEND improvement.
- school places, attendance, and exclusion as they impact on vulnerable children with whom we are working.
- service, support and care for children and young people with complex needs.
- deeper, stronger integration: early help; contextual safeguarding; Preparation for Adulthood etc.
- implementation of an effective commissioning model: which could offer the opportunity for integration with the NHS and council.
- the continuous need to build stronger collaborative working: West Midlands Police, NHS, Council, Birmingham Voluntary Service Council.

The Trust is working with partners, and across organisational boundaries, to drive improvement in these and other areas to further enhance the positive impact we can collectively make for the city's most vulnerable children and families.

Corporate Parenting

A key area for me is our Corporate Parenting offer and I found the first Corporate Parenting Board meeting that I attended in July an inspiring meeting. This was the annual Take Over meeting where children and young people set the agenda and chair the meeting.

The Corporate Parenting Board has developed a new structure and governance, ensuring the Board is more accountable and impactful. The structure ensures children and young people's voices are central to the Board and the young people's successful Take-Over Board is now a permanent feature in the meeting cycle. There are plans in development to broaden the take-over sessions to include senior council leadership forums.

The key priorities of the Board, driven by the voice of young people, include:

- standards of accommodation too much variation in quality of accommodation; some is excellent, some is not good enough.
- mental health and emotional wellbeing access to mental health services is a concern as is the variation in how young people experience the quality of these services.
- digital poverty everything is online, accessing jobs, training, finances, employment, training, and study. The cost of internet and access to devices is a growing issue for care leavers across the city.
- the support for young people taking on apprenticeships should level up with those on higher education pathways.

Corporate Parenting Board Achievements

The Corporate Parenting Board and the associated team within Birmingham Children's Trust has overseen and delivered a range of activities over the last 12 months. The following achievements should be noted:

- the Corporate Parenting Team have delivered elected Member induction and plans for a full council focus have been diarised.
- the Bfriends charity is now officially registered by the Charity Commission and its first Trustee Board meeting took place on 9 February 2022. This includes young people, business, and organisations across the city, ranging from Aston Villa Foundation to Barclays Bank.
- the Holiday and Food Programme (HAF) hub model has been held up nationally as a good practice model for delivery and has impacted on thousands of children and young people across the city.
- the Birmingham Children's Trust apprenticeship programme has been developed and 14 Apprenticeships for Care Leavers across a wide range of opportunities are in post.
- our Participation Strategy now has an active working group and is making progress against the strategy to ensure that the voices of children, young people and our families are heard and are central to decision making.
- a Volunteer Recruitment Campaign was launched for Independent Visitors, who support children in care. This was opened by the then Lord Mayor of Birmingham, Councillor Muhammad Afzal. Over 70 key stakeholders, partners, community leaders and businesses from across the city attended. This has led to a 400% increase in volunteers.

- the 'Future You' film was premiered at a red-carpet event in Millennium Point four care leavers took part in a 12-month programme to develop aspirational
 films that are being used to raise awareness and drive change. The Future
 You films are now part of a structured training programme for Members.
- our Commonwealth Games (CWG) Programme and events continue to take place and have delivered different CWG sports, events, and job/work experience opportunities. This includes the distribution of 5000 tickets to vulnerable children and children in care.
- development and consultation on the Care Leavers offer is underway both internally and in partnership with the West Midlands Participation Groups. This work is looking at what the best offer is nationally and regionally and then aligning our updated offer to this. A core component of this will be establishing a multi-disciplinary care leavers resource hub, ideally located in the city centre.

Birmingham Children's Trust Resources

The proposed contract sum which will form the basis of the Trust's revenue budget for 2022/23 is £229.2m.

The Trust faces significant financial pressures in 2022/23 because of a combination of factors:

- projected, but unfunded, growth in numbers of children in care.
- unprecedented price increases across residential care and supported accommodation.
- a significant rise in the complexity of need of those in our care, for whom the market fails to provide placements and who require, as a result, bespoke high-cost care packages.
- minimal contributions to the costs of placements from Education and Health.

The Trust will work with the Council to share understanding of these pressures and agree a way forward.

Risks and challenges

We know the coming year will bring challenges:

- demand for our services has returned to pre-pandemic levels and we know that there is much need in our communities.
- finding a good care placement for every child who needs one remains a challenge.
- the complexity of need we are encountering, including the compounding factor of the pandemic, is an emerging challenge.
- our resources, and those of partners, are, and will be, stretched.
- recruitment and retention are no easier with a regional and national shortage of social workers and a shortening 'shelf-life' for practitioners.
- we will feel the impact of the National Review into the circumstances of the death of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes in neighbouring Solihull.

The Children's Trust is well-placed to rise to these challenges and maintain the trajectory of improvement we have set hitherto.

8. Performance Management

Robust performance management is in place through corporate reporting with additional key performance indicators due to be set out in the Children and Young People's Plan.

In addition, the directorate's improvement journey is being monitored by the Children's Services Improvement Board.

The SEND Improvement Board monitors progress against the Accelerated Progress Plan.

9. Commissioning

The directorate commissions several services which support children and young people. The directorate spends circa £481m with providers for services for children, young people and families. the highest value contracts are those set out in the table below:

Provider/Organisation	Contract purpose
Birmingham Education Partnership	School improvement. BEP is commissioned by the council to deliver school improvement and development to schools.
Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust	0-19 healthy child programme. BCHT provides health visiting, school nursing. Commissioners commission the healthy child programme with BCHT on behalf of public health.
Birmingham Children's Trust	BCT provides children's social care, early help and youth offending services for the council.
StreetGames	StreetGames are the lead organisation the council commission to co-ordinate (and provide some elements) of the Holiday Activities and Food Programme. They subcontract with smaller organisations city wide to deliver the range of activities and food into local communities
Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust	BCHT delivers a number of therapy services on behalf of the council. These include Speech and Language Therapy and Occupational Therapy Services. These support children and young people with SEND.

The focus of the directorate's commissioning work is with the two main providers of services for children and young people - Birmingham Children's Trust (BCT) and Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (BCHCT). These two organisations provide:

- Social care and social work, preventative family support and youth offending services - Birmingham Children's Trust
- Health visiting, school nursing and support to families with young children-Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (BCHCT).

0-19 healthy child programme

BCHCT currently delivers the 0-19 healthy child programme for all children and families in the city. On average per month over 69,000 children are engaged with the universal service e.g., Children's Centre offer such as Stay & Play

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic significantly impacting the delivery model along with a national Health Visitor shortage, they have delivered key achievements since the contract commenced. Recent trends show a continued and significant improvement since 2020/21, as measured by 26 key indicators.

A contract improvement plan is under joint development to tackle progress in term of addressing 3 key areas: the workforce and staffing issues, data and management information and the financial reporting.

The Council has established a project to recommission the Healthy Child Programme and the current phase features work on an options appraisal for the future commission, which aims to inform the commissioning strategy and model by which Birmingham City Council will secure the future Healthy Child Programme 0-19 Service by September 2024.

Delivery of the Holiday Activities and Food programme (HAF)

The successful HAF programme in Birmingham is delivered by Streetgames and partners.

In 2021/22 (Easter, Summer, and Winter) 37,900 children and young people (16,517 of whom were eligible for free school meals) attended Bring It On Brum holiday clubs which offered engaging activities and meals for children and young people in the school holidays.

As the programme has evolved there has been a sharper focus on children and young people most in need, supported by marketing and promotion. At Easter 2022, 87% of all children attending were eligible for free school meals and those that weren't were felt to be in need by their schools of community supporters. The programme exceeded its target of 15,000 children attending at Easter.

Information on the delivery of the summer 2022 programme will be available in the autumn term.

Successful grant award to implement Family Hubs

Birmingham was awarded a grant from the DHSC/DfE to develop the Family Hub/Best Start for Life programme. This programme is centrally governed, with funding being allocated to deliver specific strands, there is an expectation that the following will be delivered:

A small capital programme to provide or improve physical hubs

- A Family Hubs programme budget (core staffing)
- Perinatal mental health and parent- infant relationships
- Parenting support
- Infant feeding support
- Home learning environment support
- Publishing 'Start for Life' offers for every new parent
- Parent and Carer Panels

Early Help Programme

The Early Help programme, which supports families with children of school age, was developed during Covid created a partnership approach with 10 voluntary sector organisations working jointly with 10 early help teams (80 early help professionals) employed by Birmingham Children's Trust – jointly leading the support for families in the 10 localities (constituency areas).

The Early Help Programme works very closely with Children Centres and Birmingham Forward Steps, who support families with children aged 0-5.

The heart of the work is helping families to find community, neighbourhood, and voluntary sector support local to them supported by evidence-based parenting programmes and interventions. The Early Help programme also implemented a multiagency case management system, investment in mental health capacity, virtual mental health support for young people and free online parenting programmes for parents.

Over the last year more partnership services and professionals have linked and supported the 10 locality teams including early help police officers, some primary care services including GPs, STICK mental health support team, SEND pupil and school support staff, housing advice, Birmingham Forward Steps children's centres, school pastoral care and support staff, and many VCF sector organisations. Birmingham Children's Trust have also been able to reshape or recommission a number of 'Supporting People (Troubled Families) contracts to align with early help including housing support, autism support, domestic abuse and youth mentoring.

The structure of the early help programme, working with local partners has also been instrumental in the distribution of hardship funds, covid relief funding, the household support fund and winter food and fuel payments to individual families. Overall, some 30,000 families have been supported by the early help programme over the last 12 months, with a distribution of over £4m in funding through various funding streams.

The Early Help programme receives about 1000 family connect forms, asking for help for some 2500 individuals, a month. In March 2022 there was a detailed review of the progress in each locality, and the findings from those 10 meetings was overwhelmingly positive. Teams working across the partnership have increased their reach into each neighbourhood, school, community settings with a programme of training, outreach and surgeries. Good outcomes are noted for families receiving longer term support (more than a month) with progress measured on a distance travelled tool. There is also a lot of positive feedback from schools.

Quote from one school.

"I am a pastoral care manager for a two-form entry school. I can honestly say that since I have been able to ask for support for some of our families, my level of job satisfaction has increased significantly. The families I used to spend hours worrying about will get help from yourselves and the school together. The weekly network meetings are so useful."

Cllr Karen McCarthy

Cabinet Member Children, Young People and Families

Appendix 1 Birmingham Children's Trust – Strategic Priorities

Strategic Priority	Impact/Benefits
Quality of Practice	 Remains a priority for the Trust Maintained trajectory of improvement leading to better services, better outcomes, and an improved Ofsted judgement Further refine and embed the Trust Practice Model and assuring its implementation Continued focused work on improving the quality of practice in our work in and for the family courts, minimising delay, assuring case progression (Practice and Legal Service)
	 Progress 2021/22: Audit and Practice Evaluation evidence improving practice Focused Visit October 2021 by Ofsted reported positively on quality of services and practice
Designing Trust Services to Improve the Child's Journey	 Shaping Practice to minimise transfer points and maximise consistency Ensuring the whole system operates effectively and efficiently Shaping support services to maximise support to Practice and to front-line practitioners, embracing efficiency and innovation in our operating model Using our new accommodation footprint to enhance the working environment, create productive and trauma-
Stronger Families Programme	 informed spaces, and spaces where children, young people and families are welcome Remains a priority for the Trust More support to keep young people safely within their families More children and young people cared for in their families rather than by 'stranger carers' when they cannot live with their parents
	 Progress 2021/22: Families Together Plus service embedded Edge of Care service hours extended to support Out of Hours activity to support children and families Further increase in delivery of Family Group Conferences: 600+ in 2021/22 enabling effective family decision-making Stronger Families targets achieved (Care admissions etc.) although challenges in relation to complexity of need/risk presenting
Maintain delivery of services and workforce wellbeing in the ongoing Covid pandemic Further improve Placement Sufficiency, and develop Trust	 Maintained strong business continuity arrangements Services prioritised to deliver statutory accountabilities and ensure the most vulnerable are regularly seen and supported, working with partners across the system Increased placement choice and sufficiency

Strategic Priority	Impact/Benefits
Residential Care offer to children and young people	 More foster carers recruited, assessed, and approved More adopters recruited, assessed, and approved (through the new Regional Adoption Agency)
Support the establishment of Bfriends, the new charity	 Ensure all proper governance arrangements are in place Ensure the charity has necessary infrastructure support to enable it to start to deliver its priorities Agree appropriate trustee arrangements are in place Support fundraising/income generation in the charity
Equalities	 Services delivered in ways, and by a workforce, at all tiers, that reflect the needs and experiences of the population we serve, equitably and fairly Anti-racist practice embedded in our work Staff feel equitably valued by the organisation in which they work; staff have the same opportunities for development and progression; HR activity reflects the workforce Targeted work is undertaken to encourage support and progression for staff from black, Asian and minority ethnic communities Bias and discrimination are unacceptable and is routinely addressed
Recruitment and Retention	 Trust reputation and profile further enhanced and widely promoted (local, regional, national) Improved pipeline of social workers joining the Trust Improved retention and progression of social workers (Linked to the 'Child's Journey' redesign priority)
Support to Staff	 Develop 'communities of practice' across the Trust, enabling collaborative learning, learning and support Continue to enhance our wellbeing offer and ensure it is understood and accessible Explore new development and support models for leaders, managers, and front-line practitioners, with external partners
Strategic and Operational Financial Management	 Implement actions emerging from the CIPFA and C.Co reviews, jointly with the Council's Finance partners Enhance financial management at all levels of the trust Improve efficiency and value for money Successful implementation of 1B (Oracle) and optimisation of Target Operating Models for HR, Finance and Business Support (and linked to Journey of the Child)
Partnerships	 Maintain and enhance Trust presence and contribution to all key partnerships across the city Advocacy for the most vulnerable in these partnerships Drive closer, more effective operational partnership working in all contexts: information-sharing; collaboration; trust and confidence
Participation and Engagement	 Build the reach and scope of our engagement with children in care and care leavers Establish routine engagement with other service user groups: children in the child protection system and their families; children in need etc. Build greater co-production in our service development

Strategic Priority	Impact/Benefits	
	Continue to focus on building engagement and connection with our staff through the Employee Forum, Wellbeing Forum, Equalities Forum, and our communications models	

Appendix 2 Birmingham Children's Trust summary of performance 2021/22:

PI	Measure	Number of months where target met or within tolerances last 12 months	% where target met or within tolerances last 12 months
1	% of all referrals with a decision within 24 hours	12/12	100%
2	% of re-referrals to children's social care within 12 months	12/12	100%
3	% assessments completed within 45 working days	10/12	83%
4	% Initial CP conferences held within 15 working days	12/12	100%
5	% of children who became the subject of a CP plan for a second or subsequent time within the last 2 years	12/12	100%
6	% of children (under 16 years) who have been looked after for 2.5 years or more, and in the same placement (or placed for adoption) continuously for 2 years or more	12/12	100%
7	% children experiencing 3 or more moves in a year	12/12	100%
8	% of children in care reviews held on time	12/12	100%
9	% of care leavers who are in education, employment, and training (EET)	12/12	100%
10	% of care leavers who are living in suitable accommodation (19-21)	12/12	100%
11	Average time between a child coming into care and being placed with an adoptive family (A2)	7/12	58%
	Number of children who have been adopted in year or who leave care	N/A	73 against a target of 85
13	% of agency social workers (including team managers)	0/12	0%
14	Average caseload of qualified social workers	12/12	100%
15	% of social workers who have had supervision (in month)	12/12	100%



Education and Children's Social Care O&S Committee: Work Programme 2022/23

Chair: Cllr Kerry Jenkins

Deputy Chair: Cllr Des Hughes

Committee Members: Cllrs: Shabina Bano, Jilly Bermingham, Debbie Clancy, Morriam Jan, Shehla

Moledina, and Simon Morrall

Education Representatives: Justine Lomas, Roman Catholic Diocese, Osamugi Ogbe, Parent Governor, Rabia Shami, Parent Governor, and Sarah Smith,

Church of England Diocese

Officer Support: Senior Overview and Scrutiny Manager: Fiona Bottrill (303 1731)

Scrutiny Officer: Amanda Simcox: (675 8444)

Committee Manager: Sofia Mirza (675 0216)

1 Introduction

- 1.1 The remit of the Education and Children's Social Care O&S Committee is 'to fulfil the functions of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee as they relate to any policies, services and activities concerning schools and education, the Children's Trust, vulnerable children, corporate parenting, children and young people's health and wellbeing and other child social care and safeguarding functions of the council'.
- 1.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee dealing with education matters shall include in its membership the following voting representatives: a) Church of England diocese representative (one); b) Roman Catholic diocese representative (one); and c) Parent Governor representatives (two, who are on the Committee until 30th April 2026).
- 1.3 This report provides details of the scrutiny work programme for 2022/23.

2 Recommendation

- 2.1 That the Committee considers its work programme, attached at Appendix 1, and agrees any amendments required.
- 2.2 Notes the membership for the two Inquiries the Committee is involved with:

Inquiry	Committees Involved	Members
Children & Young	Members from: Health & Social	Cllrs: Mick Brown (Chair), Kath
People's Mental	Care O&S Committee* and	Hartley, Gareth Moore, Julian
Health		Pritchard, and Paul Tilsley (Deputy
		Chair).



	Education & Children's Social Care O&S Committee	Cllrs: Jilly Bermingham, and Simon Morrall.
Child Criminal Exploitation	Members from: Education & Children's Social Care O&S Committee	Cllrs: Des Hughes (Chair), Shabina Bano, Morriam Jan, Shehla Moledina, and Simon Morrall.

^{*}indicates the lead Committee where the task and finish group includes Members from more than one Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

3 Background

- 3.1 "Scrutiny is based on the principle that someone who makes a decision...should not be the only one to review or challenge it. Overview is founded on the belief that an open, inclusive, member-led approach to policy review...results in better policies in the long run." (Jessica Crowe, former Executive Director, Centre for Governance and Scrutiny).
- 3.2 Developing an effective work programme is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done well, it can help lay the foundations for targeted, inclusive and timely work on issues of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done poorly, scrutiny can end up wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any scrutiny work done is likely to be minimal.
- 3.3 As a result, the careful selection and prioritisation of work is essential if the scrutiny function is to be successful, add value and retain credibility.

4 Work Programme

4.1 Appendix 1 sets out the future work programme for this Committee. This provides information on the aims and objectives, together with lead officers and witnesses, for each item. The attached work programme also includes items to be programmed where dates are still to be confirmed, and any outstanding items including the tracking of previous recommendations.

5 Other Meetings

5.1 There are no other meetings scheduled at this time.

Call in Meetings:
None scheduled
Petitions
None scheduled
Councillor Call for Action requests



None scheduled

Committee approved Wednesday at 10.00am as a suitable day and time each week for any additional meetings required to consider 'requests for call in' which may be lodged in respect of Executive decisions.

6 Forward Plan for Cabinet Decisions

- 6.1 Since the implementation of the Local Government Act and the introduction of the Forward Plan, scrutiny members have found the Plan to be a useful tool in identifying potential agenda items.
- 6.2 The following decisions, extracted from the CMIS Forward Plan of Decisions, are likely to be relevant to the Education and Children's Social Care O&S Committee's remit. The Committee may wish to consider whether any of these issues require further investigation or monitoring via scrutiny. The Forward Plan can be viewed in full via Forward Plans (cmis.uk.com).

ID Number	Title	Proposed Date of Decision	
010410/2022	Birmingham Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2022/23	06 Sep 22	

7 Legal Implications

7.1 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.

8 Financial Implications

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in this report.

9 Public Sector Equality Duty

- 9.1 The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have due regard to the need to:
 - eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;
 - advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
 - foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
- 9.2 The Committee should ensure that it addresses these duties by considering them during work programme development, the scoping of work, evidence gathering and making recommendations. This should include considering: How policy issues impact on different



groups within the community, particularly those that share a relevant protected characteristic; Whether the impact on particular groups is fair and proportionate; Whether there is equality of access to services and fair representation of all groups within Birmingham; Whether any positive opportunities to advance equality of opportunity and/or good relations between people are being realised.

9.3 The Committee should ensure that equalities comments, and any recommendations, are based on evidence. This should include demographic and service level data and evidence of residents/service-users views gathered through consultation.

10 Use of Appendices

10.1 Appendix 1 – Work Programme for 2022/2023

APPENDIX 1 - 2022-23 WORK PROGRAMME

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 20th July 2022 at 10am in the BMI, Margaret Street

Item/ Topic	Type of Scrutiny	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information (Including joint working / links with other O&S Committees)
SEND Improvement and the Accelerated Progress Plan	Update Report	Advise current position on SEND Improvement, and the Accelerated Progress Plan (APP).	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families Victor Roman, SEND Improvement Programme Manager	None Required	
Home to School Transport (HTST)	Update Report	Assurances on improvements to the HTST service including arrangements for Sep 2022.	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families	Mike Fagan, AD, Home to School Transport John Elsegood, Head of Communications Satinder Sahota, Interim City Solicitor & Monitoring Officer	None Required	
Youth Justice Plan	Consultation	To discuss the priorities prior to the plan going to Cabinet and City Council for adoption.	Seamus Gaynor, Head of Executive, Children's Trust	Dionne McAndrew, AD, Vulnerable Young People, Children's Trust Janine Saleh, Head of Service, Youth Offending Service	None Required	
Work Programme Development	Decision	Approve work programme for 2022-23	Fiona Bottrill, Senior Overview and Scrutiny Manager	None	None Required	

Final Deadline: Monday 11th July 2022, and Publication: Tuesday 12th July 2022

Education and Children's Social Care O&S Committee, September 2022 - Appendix 1

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 7th September 2022 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information
SEND Improvement	Update Report	Improvement Journey	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families	Sue Harrison, Director, Children	None Required	
	пероп		Crimaretr and Farmines	and Families	Required	
Cabinet Member	Update	Report providing a summary	Suman McCarthy,	Cllr Karen McCarthy,	None	Cabinet Member
Portfolio Overview	Report	of Cabinet Member priorities for 2022-23, and identify opportunities for O&S to add value	Cabinet Support Officer	Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families	Required	Portfolio Overview
Work Programme	Decision	Approve work programme	Fiona Bottrill, Senior	None	None	
Development /		for 2022-23	Overview and Scrutiny		Required	
Inquiry Proposal			Manager			

Final Deadline: Friday 26th August 2022

Publication: Tuesday 30th August 2022

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 19th October 2022 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information
SEND Commissioner	Update Report	To provide information on the work of the SEND Improvement Board and how O&S can add value to the SEND improvement journey.	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families	John Coughlan, DFE Commissioner	None Required	
HTST / Children and Young People Travel Service Update	Update Report	Update on the service delivered in Sep 2022.	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families John Elsegood, Head of Communications	None Required	
Work Programme Development / Inquiry	Decision	Approve work programme for 2022-23	Fiona Bottrill, Senior Overview and Scrutiny Manager	None	None Required	Work Programme Development

Final Deadline: Monday 10th October 2022

Publication: Tuesday 11th October 2022

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 30th November 2022 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information
Birmingham Safeguarding Children's Partnership (BSCP)	Update Report	To receive the BSCP Two- Year Report and the Independent Chair's Accountability Report	Simon Cross Business Manager, BSCP	Penny Thompson, Independent Chair, BSCP Simon Cross Business Manager, BSCP	None	Last attended a formal committee meeting on 16 th February 2022
Children's Trust	Update Report	To receive the Business Plan and Priorities (including an update on the paper that is going to Cabinet on the 8 th November regarding the contract)	Seamus Gaynor, Head of Executive, Children's Trust	Andrew Christie, Chair Andy Couldrick, Chief Executive, Children's Trust	None	Last attended a formal committee meeting on 1st September 2021
Children and Young People Plan TBC for either 30 th Nov 2022 or 4 th Jan 2023	Consultation	Part of the consultation	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families	Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families Kerry Madden, Programme Manager	None	

Final Deadline: Monday 21st November 2022

Publication: Tuesday 22nd November 2022

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 4th January 2023 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information
Children and Young	Consultation	Part of the consultation	Sue Harrison, Director,	Sue Harrison,		
People Plan			Children and Families	Director, Children and		
				Families		
TBC for either 30 th						
Nov 2022 or 4 th Jan				Kerry Madden,		
2023				Programme Manager		

Final Deadline: Thursday 22nd December 2022

Publication: Friday 23rd December 2022

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 22nd February 2023 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information
School Attainment	Update Report		Lisa Fraser, AD, Education and Early	Lisa Fraser, AD, Education and Early		
			Years	Years		
				Alan Michell, Head of		
				Service for		
				Admissions,		
				Attendance,		
				Exclusions and Pupil		
				Tracking		

Final Deadline: Monday 12th February 2023

Publication: Tuesday 13th February 2023

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 5th April 2023 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information
Children's Trust	Update Report	To provide an update on Progress with the Priorities	Seamus Gaynor, Head of Executive, Children's Trust	Andrew Christie, Chair, Children's Trust Andy Couldrick, Chief Executive, Children's	To be discussed	
			Suman McCarthy, Cabinet Support Officer	Trust Cllr Karen McCarthy, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families (tbc)		
				Sue Harrison, Director, Children and Families (tbc)		

Final Deadline: Monday 27th March 2023

Publication: Tuesday 28th March 2023

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 17th May 2023 at 10am in Committee Rooms 3 & 4, Council House

Item/ Topic	Туре	Aims and Objectives	Lead Officer	Witnesses	Visits	Additional Information

Final Deadline: Monday 8th May 2023

Publication: Tuesday 9th May 2023

TO BE SCHEDULED:

- 1. Grand Challenges, City Observatory data indicators by committee remit
- 2. Scrutiny Inquiry: Child Criminal Exploitation and County Lines
- 3. Joint Scrutiny Inquiry with Health and Social Care O&S Committee: Children and Young People's Mental Health
- 4. Visits